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May 17, 2017 
 

Legal Memorandum 
__________________________________ 

 

Broadcasters Settle Copyright Dispute With FilmOn X 
 

Settlement of the ongoing legal battle over copyright between broadcasters and FilmOn X 

has been announced—but precious few details are available due to the confidential nature of the 

settlement.   

 

As we reported previously, in March 2017, Internet streaming service FilmOn X suffered 

a heavy blow at the hands of the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals in its ongoing copyright battle 

with television broadcasters.  The federal court sided with broadcasters, ruling that Internet 

streamers are not “cable systems” eligible for the compulsory copyright license provided in Section 

111 of the Copyright Act.   

 

Section 111 allows cable systems to distribute broadcasters’ copyrighted content without 

negotiating individual copyright licenses with every network and local station.  Without access to 

the compulsory license, FilmOn X’s service—which captured programs broadcast over the air and 

retransmitted them to paying subscribers without broadcasters’ consent—would violate the 

Copyright Act.   

 

Following its decision in March, the Ninth Circuit refused FilmOn X’s request for a 

rehearing before the full panel of Ninth Circuit judges.  Meanwhile, the District of Columbia 

Circuit Court of Appeals was reviewing a lower federal court’s ruling that, like the Ninth Circuit, 

had rejected FilmOn X’s bid for the compulsory license.  The District of Columbia appeals court 

held argument in March but had not yet issued a decision at the time the settlement was announced.   

 

The confidential settlement appears to put an end to the years-long copyright battle between 

television broadcasters and FilmOn X (and its now-defunct rival, Aereo) and eliminates the 

possibility that the U.S. Supreme Court would be asked to resolve the copyright dispute.  In the 

wake of the settlement, FilmOn X has dismissed its appeals.  
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If you have any questions concerning the information discussed in this memorandum, 

please contact your communications counsel or any of the undersigned. 

 

Stephen Hartzell, Editor 

 

BROOKS, PIERCE, McLENDON,  

 HUMPHREY & LEONARD, L.L.P.  

 

Wade H. Hargrove  

Mark J. Prak  

Marcus W. Trathen 

David Kushner 

Coe W. Ramsey 

Charles E. Coble 

Charles F. Marshall 

Stephen Hartzell 

Julia C. Ambrose 

Elizabeth E. Spainhour 

J. Benjamin Davis 

Timothy G. Nelson 

___________________________________ 
 

 

This Legal Review should in no way be construed as legal advice or a legal opinion on any specific set of 

facts or circumstances.  Therefore, you should consult with legal counsel concerning any specific set of facts or 

circumstances. 
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